
 

 

Arun District Council 
Civic Centre 
Maltravers Road 
Littlehampton 
West Sussex 
BN17 5LF 
 
Tel: (01903 737500) 
Fax: (01903) 730442 
DX: 57406 Littlehampton 
Minicom: 01903 732765 
 
e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Committee Manager Helen Burt (EXTN 37614) 

18 May 2021 
 
ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee will be held virtually 
on Thursday 27 May 2021 at 6.00 pm and you are requested to attend. 
 
 
Members:  Councillors Edwards (Chair), Mrs Staniforth (Vice-Chair), Chace, 

Bicknell, English, Goodheart, Huntley, Miss Needs, Mrs Warr and 
Mrs Worne. (1 member still TBC – Green Party) 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will be a ‘virtual meeting’ and any member of the press and 
public may listen-in and view the proceedings via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24 hours before the meeting.  
 
This meeting is held in accordance with the resolution of Extraordinary Council on 12 May 
2021 which continues Section 5 Part 5 of the Constitution (The Virtual Meeting Procedure 
Rules) and declares the use of Council powers, under Section 111 of the Local Government 
Act 1972, and the general power of competence under Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, 
for making advisory decisions, as appropriate. 
  
This Council’s revised Rules of Procedures for ‘virtual meetings’ can be found by clicking on 
this link: https://www.arun.gov.uk/constitution 
 
Any members of the public wishing to address the Committee meeting during Public 
Question Time, will need to email Committees@arun.gov.uk by 5.15 pm on Wednesday 19 
May 2021 in line with current Procedure Rules.  It will be at the Chief 
Executive’s/Chairman’s discretion if any questions received after this deadline are 
considered. 
 
For further information on the items to be discussed, please contact: 
committees@arun.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.arun.gov.uk/constitution
mailto:Committees@arun.gov.uk
mailto:committees@arun.gov.uk


 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members and Officers are invited to make any declaration of 
pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may 
have in relation to items on this agenda, and are reminded 
that they should re-declare their interest before consideration 
of the items or as soon as the interest becomes apparent. 
 
Members and Officers should make their declaration by 
stating: 
a) the item they have the interest in 
b) whether it is a pecuniary/personal interest and/or 

prejudicial interest 
c) the nature of the interest 
 

 

3. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF 
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON 
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  
 

 

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

 To receive questions from the public (for a period of up to 15 
minutes) 
 

 

5. START TIMES   

 The Committee is required to agree its start times for the year 
2021/22. 
 

 

6. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 This report asks the Environment and Neighbourhood 
Services Committee to note its terms of reference as given by 
Full Council and to make any suggestions to the Constitution 
Working Party for clarifying these terms of reference and to 
make, by exception, delegations to Officers under matters 
reserved. 
 

 

OUTSIDE BODIES - FEEDBACK FROM MEETINGS 
 
None. 
 

7. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 The Committee is required to approve the Work Programme 
for 2021/22. 
 

 



 
 

Note : If Members have any detailed questions, they are reminded that they need to 
inform the  Chair and relevant Director in advance of the meeting. 

 
Note : Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings – The District Council 

supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision making and 
permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are 
open to the public. This meeting may therefore be recorded, filmed or broadcast 
by video or audio, by third parties. Arrangements for these activities should 
operate in accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council and as available via 
the following link Filming Policy 

https://www.arun.gov,uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n12353.pdf&ver=12365


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

         
 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
REPORT TO ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

COMMITTEE 
ON 27 MAY 2021 

 
 

 

SUBJECT: Terms of Reference for the Environment and Neighbourhood Services 
Committee; Matters Reserved; and Delegation to Officers 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:   Solomon Agutu – Interim Monitoring Officer  
DATE:  27 May 2021    
EXTN:  37432   
COMMITTEE:  Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

This report asks the Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee to note its terms 
of reference as given by Full Council to make any suggestions to the Constitution Working 
Party for clarifying these terms of reference and to make, by exception, delegations to 
Officers under matters reserved.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

The Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the general terms of reference for Committees in Part 3, Paragraph 3, of the 
Constitution and further note the specific terms of reference of this Environment and 
Neighbourhood Services Committee, as established by Full Council on 19 May 2021, 
as set out in Part 1 and Part 2 of Appendix 1 (attached); 

2. Make suggestions to Full Council, through the Constitution Working Party (CWP) for 
clarifications of these terms of reference;  

3. Note the schedule of Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee 
meetings as set out in the Calendar of meetings, attached as a background paper 
accessible by e-link; and  

4. Agree the matters reserved scheme whereby matters not reserved by Committee to 
itself are delegated to Officers by default as set out in Appendix 2 (attached).  

 

Background 
 
1.This is the first meeting of the Committee under the new Committee System and it is 
appropriate that this Committee considers its terms of reference and where necessary seek 
clarification of these terms of reference from Full Council by way of a co-ordinated report 
from the Constitution Working Party (CWP) which is charged with reviewing the Constitution 
and coordinating suggestions for change from other Committees.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

2.Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, allows Full Council to arrange for the 
discharge of its functions by a Committee or by an Officer. Part 3 of the Constitution sets 
out the responsibility for functions and Paragraph 3 of Part 3 the Constitution sets out the 
general terms of reference for all Committees. These provisions allow this Committee to 
reserve matters to itself and to delegate the remaining functions to Officers (Part 3 
Paragraph 3.1.5) - see Appendix 1. 
 
3.Arranging for the discharge of specific functions by Officers is by a process known as 
“delegation by exception” or “matters reserved”. 
 
4.This means the Committee can reserve matters to itself that can only be discharged by 
the Committee.  Matters not reserved are then delegated by default to Officers. 
 
5. In accordance with Part 4 and Section 2 of the Constitution, the matters not reserved are 
by default delegated the Chief Executive, Directors and Group Heads who have the power 
to take all lawful action consistent with overall Council Policy to deliver agreed strategy, 
plans and policy, and to comply with and undertake all statutory obligations, duties, functions 
and powers within their area of responsibility and within approved budget.   
 
6. In accordance with Part 4 and Section 2 of the Constitution, the Chief Executive or 
Director, having received their delegations expressly or by default can then prepare a 
scheme of “authorisations” or ”allocations” authorising identified officers to discharge various 
functions and to take decisions. Unless authorised by law, a delegate cannot delegate 
further their own functions (“delegatus non potest delegare”) and thus the discharge of 
functions below Chief Executive and Director level is generally by a “scheme authorisations” 
not a “scheme of delegation”. If there were to be a further “delegation” they are to be 
recorded in writing and retained for the duration of the delegation and shall not exceed a 
specified period exceeding six months.  

2.  PROPOSAL(S): 

The proposal is that the Committee reserves to itself the “matters reserved” at Appendix 2 
and delegates all other functions to Officers as set out in Appendix 1 Part 2 

3.  OPTIONS: 

1. Do nothing 

2. Agree the proposals as recommended 

3. Agree the proposals as recommended but with suggested amendments for 
clarifications to be made to CWP for consideration and recommendation to Full 
Council 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

N/A 

Has consultation been undertaken with? YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council  X 

Relevant District Ward Councillors  X 

Other groups/persons (please specify)  X 

Page 2



 

 

 

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial X  

Legal X  

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment  X 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

 X 

Sustainability  X 

Asset Management/Property/Land  X 

Technology  X 

Equality and Diversity  X 

Climate Change  X 

Other (please explain)  X 

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

Legal: the legal implications are set out in the background paragraph above 

Finance: the financial implications of delegations are set out in the contract standing Orders 
and in the Financial Regulations 

 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

The reason for the decision is to allow the business of the Council to be conducted effectively 
and efficiently in accordance with the principle of subsidiarity which mandates that decisions 
are to be taken at the most appropriate level.  

 

8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Calendar of Meetings 

 
 
 
  

Page 3

https://www.arun.gov.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n17086.pdf&ver=17703


 

 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 
Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee - Terms of Reference 
from 2021/2022 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL TERMS OF REFERENCE 
Extract from Part 3 Paragraph 3 of the Constitution 
 
3.0 TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEES 
 
3.1 Committees will work to the following general terms of reference in 
discharging the specific functions allocated to them: 
 
3.1.1 Each Committee may hold inquiries and investigate the available options for 
future direction in policy development and may appoint advisors and assessors to 
assist them in this process. They may go on site visits, conduct public surveys, hold 
public meetings, commission research and do other things that they reasonably 
consider necessary to inform their deliberations. 
 
3.1.2 Each Committee is expected to determine by resolution all matters falling 
within their purpose and functions with the exception of: 
 

a) any plans and strategies listed in the Policy Framework at Article 4 of this 
Constitution; 

b) compulsory purchase orders; 
c) limitations set out in the Financial Procedure Rules and Purchasing, 

Procurement, Contracts & Disposals Rules as set out in Part 6 of this 
Constitution; and 

d) any matter which by law must be reserved to the Full Council which will be 
recommended to the Full Council or Corporate Policy and Performance 
Committee, as appropriate. 

 
3.1.3 Where a function does not clearly fall within the remit of one particular 
Service Committee, the Corporate Policy and Performance Committee shall direct 
which Committee shall deal with the function, or deal with the matter itself. 
 
3.1.4 Each Committee is authorised to establish Sub-Committees and Working 
Parties as it considers necessary for the effective conduct of the Committee’s 
powers and duties. The establishment of any Sub-Committees and Working Parties 
shall have regard to the overall resource parameters and advice of the Chief 
Executive and officers. 
 
3.1.5 Each Committee is authorised to delegate to officers such further powers as 
it thinks fit to facilitate the effective management of the Council’s and the 
Committee’s business. 
 
3.1.6 In discharging its functions, Committees must have regard to the ongoing 
requirement to make savings and efficiencies. 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 
APPENDIX 1 PART 2  

 
SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE - ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD 
SERVICES COMMITTEE- 2021/2022 

 
Purpose 
The Committee has delegated authority to exercise the Council’s functions 
relating to the delivery, by or on behalf of the Council directly or through any 
Sub-Committees it establishes, and through partnership arrangements, that 
fall within the following service areas: 

 Green Spaces 

 Cemeteries 

 Waste and Recycling 

 Car Parks 

 Engineering 

 Environmental Health 

 Building Control 

 Emergency Planning 

 Foreshores  
 
The Committee will lead on the following key plans and strategies: 

 Waste and Recycling Strategy 
 
Specific Functions 
The Committee shall also exercise the following specific functions by or on 
behalf of the Council: 
 

1. Approving any service area policies where these do not require a 
Full Council decision under the Policy Framework at Article 4 of 
this Constitution. 

2. Adopting Public Space Protection Orders which fall within the 
responsibility of this Committee. 

3. Monitoring and considering Ombudsman investigation reports and 
other complaints made. 

4. Considering and awarding compensation in excess of £5,000 in 
the event that a complaint investigation finds in a complainant’s 
favour. 

5. In line with the limits listed in the Financial Procedure Rules set out 
in Part 6 of this Constitution approval of: 

a) the virement of monies received in accordance with the terms 
of any agreement made under Section 106 Town Country 
Planning Act 1990; 

b) virements of expenditure within relevant service area budgets; 
c) the drawing down of funds; and 
d) the award of grants to organisations, including discretionary 

rate relief 
 
 

Page 5



 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 
RESERVED MATTERS 

 

The functions set out in Appendix 1 above are all delegated to officers except for 

the following functions, which are expressly reserved to committee for 

determination and cannot be discharged by an officer: 

Compensation 
Monitoring and considering Ombudsman investigation reports and other 
complaints made. 
Considering and awarding compensation in excess of £5,000 if a complaint 

investigation finds in a complainant’s favour 

Award of Grants 
The award of grants to organisations in excess of £20,000.  
 
Procurement  
Awarding contracts valued at over £100,000 unless prior authorisation has been 
given to officers by a report to Committee approving the budget and setting out 
relevant heads of terms of the contract 
 
Charges for Car Parking 
Increasing and decreasing charges for car parking.  
 
Enforcement Policy(ies) 
Adopting and revoking Enforcement Policies 
 
Street and Place Names 
Where the name of a place or a street is intended to be a living person, or a person 
associated with a political party 
 
Outside Bodies 
The Committee will receive feedback reports from the Council’s representatives or 
appointees on the following outside bodies and report any issues requiring action 
to the Council as appropriate: 

 Littlehampton Harbour Board 

 LGA’s Coastal Issues Special Interest Group  

 Inter Authority Air Quality Group 

 South East Coastal Group Monitoring Meeting 
 
Legal Professional priviledge 
Waiver of Legal Professional Priviledge in consultation with Legal Services 
 

Page 6



Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee Work Programme 

Environment & 

Neighbourhood 

Services 

Committee 

Lead Officer Date of 

Meeting 

Time Full 

Council 

Meeting 

Date 

Committee TORs 

Work Programme 

 

Solomon 

JRW/NS 

Thursday 

27/05/2021 

6pm 14-Jul-21 

     

Elmer Sands 

Community Flood 

Fund 

NS 15-Jul-21 6pm 15-Sep-

21 

     

Sunken Gardens – 

Heads of Terms for 

Procurement 

Food Safety Service 

Plan  

Health & Safety 

Service Plan   

Bognor Regis Beach 

Access Options  

 

 

JRW 

 

NS 

 

NS 

NS 

23-Sep-21 6pm 10-Nov-

21 

     

Tree Planting Strategy 

Car Parks Strategy 

Fuel Poverty 

Framework 

Empty Property 

Assistance 

Programme 

Annual Engineering 

Service Review 

 

JRW 

JRW 

NS 

 

NS 

 

NS 

18-Nov-21 6pm 12-Jan-22 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Environment and Neighbourhood Services Committee Work Programme 

Food Waste Trial 

(FWT) update 

JRW 20-Jan-22 6pm 09-Mar-22 

Solar Together Sussex NS 10-Mar-22 6pm 11-May-

22 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	6 Committee Terms of Reference
	7 Work Programme

